United States Attorneys Bulletin



Published by Executive Office for United States Attorneys Department of Justice, Washington, D.C.

VOL. 18

NOVEMBER 27, 1970

NO. 24

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Vol. 18	November 2	27, 1970	No. 24
	TABLE OF C	CONTENTS	-
POINTS TO RE	IMEMBER	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Page
Fines on App			871
Collections	•		871
	Staff Members of Fed. Correctional Institution	s	871
	earms Act: Problem nder 5861(b) & (c)		872
	Report on Convicted by U.S. Attorney		873
ANTITRUST D			
Dist. Ct. I	Denies Intervention and Consent Judgment	$\frac{U.S. v. Ciba Corp.}{(S.D. N.Y.)}$	874
Which Au torial Se Subpoena ceedings May Not		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
	That It Calls for "In- ve" Material	FTC v. Browning (C.A. D.C.)	878
Govt. Ques	E DEMONSTRATIONS tionnaire for White emonstrations, Upheld	A Quaker Action Group v. <u>Hickel</u> (C.A. D.C.)	879
Third Party Intervene for Him '	VISION N FED. OFFICERS y Has No Right to e If There Is Reason To Be Aware That an s Being Made By a		
Peace Of		<u>U.S.</u> v. <u>Vigil</u> (C.A. 10)	881
	I		

,

. ,

1

•

1

CRIMINAL DIVISION (CONTD.) AUTOMOBILE SEARCHES - RECENT DEVELOPMENTS Warrantless Search of Automobile to Obtain Serial No. Not a Search Within Prohibitions of	. •	Page	
Fourth Amendment BANK MISAPPLICATION AND FALSE ENTRIES Person Working for Subsidiary of Federally Regulated Bank Is Within Class of Persons In- cluded in 18 U.S.C. 1005 Which Is Not Limited To a Specific Class	<u>U.S.</u> v. <u>Johnson</u> (C.A. 5) U.S. v. Edick (C.A. 4)	882	
NARCOTICS Heroin Seller, Ineligible Offender Under Narcotic Addict Rehabili- tation Act, Absent Showing That Sale of Drugs Was To Obtain Drugs for Personal Use	<u>Ramos</u> v. <u>U.S.</u> (C.A. 9)	883	
IMMIGRATION AND NATURALIZA- TION SERVICE DEPORTATION - VOLUNTARY DEPARTURE PRIVILEGE - SECOND CHANCE Not Arbitrary To Cancel Without Notice Unsuccessful Liberal Policy Giving Second Chance for Voluntary Departure To Deportable Aliens	<u>Keung</u> v. <u>INS</u> (C.A. 2)	885	
IMMIGRATION Statute Permitting Alien Parent of Adult Citizen To Enter U.S. Without Regard To World-Wide Numerical Limitation of Immi- grant Visas While Subjecting Alien Parent of Infant Citizen To Such Limitation, Does Not Violate Infant Citizen's Right to Due Process	Faustino v. INS (C.A. 2)	886	

ŝ

ķ

II

LAND & NATURAL RESOURCES		
DIVISION INDIANS		
Use of Indian Trust Funds to		
Satisfy Debt To Fed. Agency	Snow Bird v. McClung	
Pursuant To Loan Agreement	(C.A. 8)	
CONTRACTS		
Nonappropriated Fund Activities;	McLean, et al. v. Com-	
Sovereign Immunity; Tucker	missioned Officers'	
Act; Interpretation of Lease	Beach Club (E.D. Va.)	
FEDERAL RULES OF CRIMINAL		
PROCEDURE		
RULE 6: The Grand Jury		
(e) Secrecy of Proceedings	$\frac{\text{U.S. v. Addonizio}}{(\text{D. N.J.})}$	
and Disclosure	(D. N.J.)	
RULE 7: The Indictment and the		
Information		
(f) Bill of Particulars	<u>U.S.</u> v. <u>Leach;</u> <u>U.S.</u>	
	v. Tremont (C.A. 1)	
RULE 8: Joinder of Offenses and	U.S. v. Addonizio	
of Defendants	(D. N. J.)	
RULE 14: Relief from Prejudicial	$\frac{U.S.}{(D. N.J.)} v. \frac{Addonizio}{(D. N.J.)}$	
Joinder	(D. N.J.)	
RULE 16: Discovery and Inspection		
(a) Defendant's Statements;		
Reports of Examinations		
and Tests; Defendant's	,	
Grand Jury Testimony		
(b) Other Books, Papers,		
Documents, Tangible	$\frac{U.S.}{(D. N.J.)}$ v. Addonizio	
Objects or Places	(D. N.J.)	
RULE 17: Subpoena		
(c) For Production of Docu-		
mentary Evidence and of	<u>U.S.</u> v. <u>Re, et al.</u> (S.D. N.Y.)	
Objects	(S.D. N.Y.)	
RULE 17.1: Pretrial Conference	U.S.v. Addonizio (D.N.J.)	
	0.0. v. Addonizio (D. N. J.)	

,

anatan (Janana) Afa (Janana) ay Af

.

ху З

III

FEDERAL RULES OF CRIMINAL		Page.
PROCEDURE (CONTD.) RULE 18: Place of Prosecution and Trial	U.S. v. Addonizio (D. N.J.)	905
RULE 21: Transfer from the District for Trial (a) For Prejudice in the District	U.S. v. Addonizio (D. N.J.)	907
RULE 29: Motion for Judgment of Acquittal		
(a) Motion Before Submission to Jury	$\frac{U.S.}{(C.A. 6)}$	909
(b) Reservation of Decision on Motion	$\frac{U.S.}{(C.A. 6)}$ v. Wininger	911
RULE 30: Instructions	$\frac{U.S. v. Leach; Tremont}{(C.A. 1)}$	913
	<u>Petley</u> v. <u>U.S.</u> (C.A. 9)	915
RULE 33: New Trial	<u>U.S.</u> v. <u>Leach</u> ; <u>Tremont</u> (C.A. 1)	917
	U.S. v. Reed (D. Conn.)	919
RULE 41: Search and Seizure (e) Motion for Return of Property and to Suppress Evidence	U.S. v. Hofbrauhaus of Hartford (D. Conn.)	921
RULE 46: Release on Bail (a) Right to Bail (1) Before Conviction	<u>Govt. of V.I.</u> v. <u>Ortiz</u> (C.A. 3)	923
RULE 54: Application and Exception (a) Courts and Commissioners (1) Courts	$\frac{\text{Govt. of V.I. }}{(\text{C.A. 3})} \text{ v. } \frac{\text{Ortiz}}{}$	925

LEGISLATIVE NOTES

ź

•

.

POINTS TO REMEMBER

Fines on Appeal

with a strate first

A substantial number of fine judgments are presently on appeal throughout the United States. United States Attorneys should take steps to protect the Government's interest in these cases.

Rule 38(a)(3) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure provides the means to do this and reads as follows:

> A sentence to pay a fine or a fine and costs, if an appeal is taken, may be stayed by the district court or by the Court of Appeals upon such terms as the court deems proper. The court may require the defendant pending appeal to deposit the whole or any part of the fine and costs in the registry of the district court, or to give bond for the payment thereof, or to submit to an examination of assets, and it may make any appropriate order to restrain the defendant from dissipating his assets.

> > (Criminal Division)

Collections

U.S. Attorney Edward R. Neaher (E.D. N.Y.) and his staff have collected and accounted for \$2,092,620.06 for the first nine months of 1970, as compared with \$875,103.43 for the same period in 1969.

Such collections are handled by Assistant U.S. Attorney Joseph Rosenzweig, Chief of the Fines and Claims Section.

Assaults on Staff Members of Federal Penal and Correctional Institutions

U.S. Attorneys in those Districts where Federal penal and correctional institutions are located should give special prosecutive attention to cases involving assaults on staff members. Assaults by inmates upon Federal officers are considered most serious offenses. In order to deter such acts, to show support for the Federal employees working in these hazardous assignments, and thereby to strengthen the operation of the correctional segment of the Department's criminal justice program, prompt and vigorous prosecution of cases involving inmate assaults upon employees should be pursued.

The foregoing policy does not eliminate the necessity of reviewing a prospective defendant's file and consulting with institution authorities to rule out the existence of factors which would tend to favor declination of prosecution under 18 U.S.C. 111 for such an incident. Such factors would include amount of good time subject to forfeiture, possible vacation of any suspension of sentence, effect of the incident on parole eligibility, and local conditions tending to mitigate or extenuate culpability. In some cases prosecution under 18 U.S.C. 751 and 1791 may prove a useful adjunct or alternative to prosecution under 18 U.S.C. 111.

(Criminal Division)

National Firearms Act: Problem of Proof Under 5861(b) and (c)

On September 25, 1970 the Ninth Circuit in Kenneth Paul Gott v. United States, No. 25, 619, held that a one-count indictment charging Gott with violating 26 U.S.C. 5861(c), for willfully and knowingly possessing a firearm which had been made in violation of 26 U.S.C. 5822, requires the Government to prove, among other elements, that the firearm in question was made in violation of Section 5822. Thus, when a defendant is charged in this manner under Section 5861(c), the Government must prove that the making occurred subsequent to November 1, 1968, the date of enactment of the section.

To avoid this problem in the future the Criminal Division recommends that, in light of the decisions in United States v. Black, No. 20,076 (6th Cir., Sept. 14, 1970); United States v. Valentine, 427 F.2d 1344 (8th Cir., 1970); United States v. Ramsey, No. 29, 329 (5th Cir., Aug. 11, 1970), and various district court decisions cited in Vol. 18, U.S. Attorneys Bulletin, No. 16, pg. 585, upholding the constitutionality of the new National Firearms Act against an attack based on the Supreme Court's decision in Haynes v. United States, 390 U.S. 85 (1968), prosecution under Section 5861(d), should be utilized whenever possible. If a case arises in which Section 5861(c) is utilized, it is recommended that the indictment charge the making of the firearm in violation of the National Firearms Act rather than in violation of present Section 5822, thereby pushing back the time period in question to 1934. This same problem is inherent in Section 5861(b) and the same solution is recommended.

(Criminal Division)

.*

10.0

Form 792 - Report on Convicted Prisoner by U.S. Attorney

*

そうない あちな あたかくふち しん

It has been brought to our attention that U.S. Attorneys are not filling out Form 792 nor making any comments regarding the convicted prisoner. It is important for the U.S. Attorney to comment on his impression of the convicted prisoner at the time of trial and whether or not there were any mitigating or aggravating circumstances pertaining to the trial which the Board of Parole should be made aware of in weighing the inmate's application for parole. Further, an interpretation of the degree of culpability of one individual, where there are two or more co-defendants, is also very helpful to the Board as many times we do not have access to the court records and must rely upon either the Form 792 or the Pre-sentence Report to adequately interpret what actually happened. In the past, the U.S. Attorneys have assumed responsibility for organizing within their local courts a procedure whereby the Form 792 was called to the attention of the sentencing judge so that he would also have the opportunity to make comments and/or recommendations. It will be appreciated if the U.S. Attorneys' offices throughout the country be reminded of the Board's great need for the Form 792 in all cases in carrying out its responsibility under the parole statutes.

*

(Board of Parole)

쑸

ANTITRUST DIVISION Assistant Attorney General Richard W. McLaren

DISTRICT COURT

CLAYTON ACT

DISTRICT COURT DENIES INTERVENTION AND ENTERS CONSENT JUDGMENT.

United States v. Ciba Corp., et al. (S.D. N.Y., 70 CIV 3078; July 17, 1970; D.J. 60-21-037-1)

On September 8, 1970 Judge Marvin E. Frankel of the Southern District of New York denied motions to intervene and to reject a consent judgment lodged with the court on July 17, 1970 in a civil antitrust suit challenging the proposed merger of two Swiss chemical companies (CIBA Limited and J.R. Geigy, S.A.) that have large subsidiaries in New York and New Jersey.

The two companies, which sought to intervene were Spray-Rite Service Corp., a distributor of herbicides obtained primarily from U.S. Geigy, and Boehringer Ingelheim G.m.b.H., a German chemical manufacturer that has an agreement with U.S. Geigy pursuant to which the latter marketed certain ethical pharmaceutical preparations in this country.

Spray-Rite had contended that the consent judgment was not in the public interest because it would eliminate competition between two research oriented companies in the herbicide industry. Spray-Rite also complained that CIBA had refused without giving a reason to distribute herbicides through Spray-Rite.

Judge Frankel characterized Boehringers concerns as "more distinctly and narrowly private". Boehringer, in essence, argued that Swiss CIBA was a major competitor of Boehringer, that U.S. Giegy had received secret information which would be revealed to Swiss CIBA, and that these factors, among others, would remove Boehringer as a potential entrant in the U.S. ethical pharmaceutical market to which Boehringer's arrangement with U.S. Geigy was a prelude.

Judge Frankel, denying intervention of right and permissive intervention, stated the following:

Both of the applicants for intervention rely, understandably but in vain, upon <u>Cascade Nat</u>. <u>Gas v. El Paso Nat. Gas</u>, 386 U.S. 129 (1967). The special facts of that case, as highlighted in subsequent decisions, make it an inopposite precedent here.

清

However difficult it is to link with the literal terms of Fed. R. Civ. P. 24(a), the fact that mandate of the Supreme Court had been disregarded was a matter of consequence in Cascade. A string of later decisions, sustained by the Supreme Court, have made this reasonably clear. United States v. Automobile Mfrs. Ass'n, 307 F. Supp. 617 (C.D. Cal. 1969), aff'd per curiam sub nom. City of New York v. United States, 397 U.S. 248 (1970); United States v. Blue Chip Stamp Co., 272 F. Supp. 432 (C.D. Cal. 1967), aff'd per curiam sub nom. Thrifty Shoppers Scrip Co. v. United States, 389 U.S. 580 (1968); United States v. Western Electric Co, 1868 Trade Cas. par. 72, 415 (DNJ), aff'd per curiam sub nom. Clark Walter & Sons Inc. v. United States, 392 U.S. 659 (1968); United States v. Aluminum Co. of America, 41 F.R.D. 342 (E.D. Mo.), appeal dismissed per curiam sub nom. Lupton Mfg. Co. v. United States, 388 U.S. 457 (1967). Conjoined with that fairly unique feature was the basic principle of Cascade that the first party allowed intervention, the State of California, had an interest not merely "at the heart of the controversy", but "at the heart of /the/ mandate" which the Court found to have been violated by the lower court and neglected by the United States as plaintiff.

It seems apparent from <u>Cascade</u> and other cases that the interest justifying intervention as of right in an antitrust suit brought by the United States must be substantial, must lie at the center of the controversy, and must be shown clearly, in the language of the Rule, to be less than "adequately represented" by the Department of Justice. This would appear to harmonize fairly the procedural aims of the Rules and the perhaps more fundamental principles governing the role of the Attorney General of the United States in representing the "public interest" in federal antitrust proceedings. With this set of criteria, there is no

essential conflict between the many cases, confiding representation of the public exclusively to the Attorney General, e.g., Sam Fox Publishing Co. v. United States, 366 U.S. 683; United States v. Borden Co., 347 U.S. 514 (1954); Buckeye Co. v. Hocking Valley Co., 269 U.S. 42 (1925); United States v. Blue Chip Stamp Co., 272 F. Supp. 432 (C. D. Cal. 1967), aff'd per curiam sub nom. Thrifty Shoppers Scrip Co. v. United States, 389 U.S. 580 (1968), and the relatively rare instances in which other parties have been permitted to intrude. So, for example, in Cascade, the government was taxed with having "knuckled under" (386 U.S. at 141) and in United States v. First Nat'l Bank & Trust Co., 280 F. Supp. 260, 263 (D. Ky. 1967), aff'd per curiam sub nom. Central Bank & Trust Co. v. United States, 391 U.S. 469 (1968), the trial court found "about a ninety per cent capitulation" by the government. Such are the infrequent occasions the coincidence of private and public interests may permit a private party in effect to interfere with or displace the normal official representatives of the public. /footnotes omitted/.

The court held that neither party had shown an interest near the heart of the case. Spray-Rite's allegations were found to be based "mostly upon predictions, rumor and speculation rather than upon direct and visible injury to itself from the conduct it questions". As to Boehringer, the court indicated that the crux of concern was "an array of special interests arising out of its unique contractual arrangements with Geigy", contractual rights not affected by the judgment. The court summarized its position as follows:

> Finally, and importantly, despite the few criticisms to which the consent decree is subjected, there is nothing here to suggest that the public interest has not been fairly, vigorously and faithfully represented by the Attorney General and his staff. The submissions now before the court reflect a thorough and sophisticated appraisal of the many interests at stake, the problems, the possible pitfalls, the litigation odds--in short, a far more spacious and rounded analysis than either movant pretends to offer.

Of course, there should be no pretense that a district judge, confronted with situations like this one, is able to reach detailed judgments on the merits. The court in such a situation--short of compelling the trial a consent

ŝ

decree avoids--must proceed in some degree upon faith in the competence and integrity of government counsel. But this is scarcely an alarming necessity. At the least, we may acknowledge that all is lost unless such confidence may be reposed safely on a host of occasions. /footnote omitted/.

Signing the judgment, the court discussed the scope of its powers and obligations in complex cases such as the one before it. The court concluded:

> What comes out of the competing views may be summarized in a few words. As has been indicated, the decree falls short of the relief originally sought, but it goes a long way toward the competitive situation at which the government's efforts have been aimed. The decree is, after all, a settlement. It accomplishes assured and immediate results without proof of the contentions in the complaint, which proof nobody suggests would necessarily be sufficient. Nobody suggests, either, that there has been "capitulation" or "knuckling under" or any semblance of bad faith on the part of anyone. There is, in sum, ample ground for finding in the judgment a sound compromise achieved by government counsel with undivided loyalty and effective attention to the public interest.

> > *

Boehringer has filed a notice of appeal.

Staff: Lewis Bernstein & James Schultz (Antitrust Division)

*

2!c

CIVIL DIVISION

Assistant Attorney General William D. Ruckelshaus

COURTS OF APPEALS

SERVICE OF PROCESS

SECTION 9 OF FED. TRADE COMMISSION ACT IS STATUTE WHICH AUTHORIZES EXTRATERRITORIAL SERVICE OF PROCESS IN SUBPOENA ENFORCEMENT PROCEEDINGS. AN FTC SUBPOENA MAY NOT BE CHALLENGED, IF OTHERWISE REASONABLE, ON GROUND THAT IT CALLS FOR "INVESTIGATIVE" MATERIAL.

Federal Trade Commission v. Ralph L. Browning (C.A. D.C., No. 23, 383; October 9, 1970; D.J. 102-1415)

This was a proceeding to enforce an FTC subpoena duces tecum served on Browning, Vice-President of the Lehigh Portland Cement Co. Service of process in the enforcement suit was effected by mail at Browning's office in Allentown, Pennsylvania, although the suit was brought within the District of Columbia. Browning resisted enforcement of the subpoena on the grounds that (1) process had not been served personally upon him, and (2) the subpoena was improperly issued. The district court rejected these defenses, and denied Browning's motion for discovery in the enforcement proceeding.

The Court of Appeals affirmed. Relying on Rule 4(f) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, which allows extraterritorial service of process "when authorized by a statute of the United States", the Court held that Section 9 of the Federal Trade Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. 49, was such a statute. That section provides that "any of the district courts of the United States within the jurisdiction of which /the/ inquiry is carried on" possesses the authority to enforce subpoenas of the Federal Trade Commission. The Court found that this constituted a grant of limited jurisdiction to a district court sitting in the district where the hearing was being conducted -- in this case, Washington, D.C. Where jurisdiction is limited to some districts, courts have traditionally implied the authority to effectuate extraterritorial service of process, and the Court did so here. It added that this decision was also supported by considerations of judicial economy, since in most FTC proceedings subpoenas are issued to witnesses in various parts of the country, and centralized enforcement proceedings are likely to increase uniformity of decision and reduce duplication of effort.

.

The Court also found unmeritorious Browning's claim that the material required by the subpoena was improper in that it called for basically investigative data that should have been in the Commission's hands before it issued the complaint in the underlying proceeding. The Court pointed out that nothing in the FTC's rules or decisions justifies refusal to comply with an otherwise reasonable subpoena, emphasized the delay that might ensue if they did, and found that in any event the instant subpoena did not call for investigative materials. Finally, since the discovery demanded by Browning in the district court related entirely to this unmeritorious contention, the Court of Appeals affirmed the refusal of the district court to permit it.

> Staff: Morton Hollander, Donald L. Horowitz and Leonard Schaitman (Civil Division)

- du

一一 ました 雪読法が

WHITE HOUSE DEMONSTRATIONS

GOVT. QUESTIONNAIRE FOR WHITE HOUSE DEMONSTRA-TIONS, UPHELD.

<u>A Quaker Action Group, et al. v.</u> <u>Walter J. Hickel, et al.</u> (C.A. D.C., No. 24, 312; October 1, 1970; D.J. 145-7-385)

This action was brought in 1969 challenging the constitutionality of regulations of the Department of the Interior restricting picketing in front of the White House to 100 persons and in Lafayette Square to 500 persons. The district court entered a preliminary injunction against all enforcement of these regulations; however, on appeal ''/t/o assure the safety of the President", the Court of Appeals modified the preliminary injunction to permit the enforcement of the regulations to the extent of requiring that groups wishing to protest provide notice to the Park Service of planned demonstrations 15 days before the event. Subsequently (upon reversal of the district court's entry of summary judgment in our favor and remand for further proceedings), the Court of Appeals further modified this order to permit the Government to address to persons wishing to demonstrate a questionnaire "for the giving of notice of prospective demonstrations in which the sponsors shall furnish reliable estimates of the number of persons participating, the estimated duration of the demonstration, including the times proposed for the beginning and conclusion, and the character of the activities in contemplation". The Government thereupon submitted to the district court for approval a form containing some 33 questions; the district court, after elimination of 16 of these questions, approved the form.

Plaintiffs then filed the instant appeal, arguing that the 17-question form deprived them of their First Amendment rights; they offered instead a six-question form. Plaintiffs particularly objected to questions in the Government's form such as the requirement to list "proposed activities involved in demonstration", and "all equipment, props and facilities proposed to be used". The Court of Appeals, however, rejecting the plaintiffs' contentions, issued an order approving in substance the form accepted by the district court.

Staff: Alan S. Rosenthal and Robert E. Kopp (Civil Division)

*

*

÷

۰. ۲۰۰۰ ۲۰۰۰

\$

*

CRIMINAL DIVISION Assistant Attorney General Will Wilson

COURTS OF APPEALS

An of Very god

ASSAULTS ON FEDERAL OFFICERS (18 U.S.C. 111)

THIRD PARTY HAS NO RIGHT TO INTERVENE IF THERE IS REASON FOR HIM TO BE AWARE THAT AN ARREST IS BEING MADE BY A PEACE OFFICER.

<u>United States</u> v. <u>Vigil</u> (C.A. 10, September 1, 1970; D.J. 125-017-13)

Two Deputy U.S. Marshals were called to an Armed Forces Induction Center where the defendant and a friend had been passing out anti-war literature in violation of rules promulgated under 40 U.S.C. 318(a). One of the Marshals attempted to arrest the defendant's friend, and at trial the defendant argued that the arrest was unlawful because it was for a peaceful misdemeanor not committed in the presence of the Marshal. The Government conceded this point but obtained an instruction precluding acquittal on that ground. On appeal the defendant urged the existence of a right to resist illegal arrest on the part of the subject thereof and also intervenors on his behalf.

The Court did not reach the question whether the subject of an illegal arrest may resist, but it did express some dissatisfaction with the cases on that point. However, in regard to the defendant, a third party to the arrest, the Court said: "We are of the opinion that where a peace officer is engaged in making an arrest, a third person does not have the right to intervene, and assist the person the officer is endeavoring to arrest to resist the arrest, if the third person knows or has good reason to believe the officer is a peace officer authorized to make arrest, and the officer is not clearly using unnecessary force, even though the arrest is illegal."

The opinion appears to be a salutary development which may well be the precursor of a similar rule applicable to the <u>subject</u> of such arrests, not involving excessive and unnecessary force.

> Staff: United States Attorney James L. Treece and Assistant U.S. Attorney Gordon L. Allott, Jr. (D. Colo.)

AUTOMOBILE SEARCHES - RECENT DEVELOPMENTS

WARRANTLESS SEARCH OF AUTOMOBILE TO OBTAIN SERIAL NUMBER NOT A SEARCH WITHIN PROHIBITIONS OF FOURTH AMEND-MENT.

United States v. James Leland Johnson (C.A. 5, No. 27025; August 13, 1970; D.J. 26-1-474)

The Court en banc upheld a panel opinion (see U.S. v. Johnson, 413 F.2d 1396 (1969)), holding that inspections of motor vehicles performed by police officers, who were entitled to be on the property where the vehicles were located, which did not damage the vehicles and were limited to determining the correct identification numbers thereof were not searches within the meaning of the Fourth Amendment, under the following facts:

(a) An FBI agent's check of the local automobile registry revealed the license tags on defendant's 1966 Chevrolet pickup was issued for a 1963 Chevy pickup; (b) the agent, though possessing no warrant, was given permission by defendant's wife "to look at the serial plate" of the 1966 Chevrolet pickup which was parked at defendant's residence; (c) the hidden confidential serial number on the vehicle did not compare with the serial number registered to defendant but did tally with a serial number of a listed stolen vehicle.

For similar rulings see United States v. Rocky Jones, 5th Cir., 1970, F.2d , /No. 28928, September 18, 1970/; United States v. Graham, 6th Cir. (1968), 391 F.2d 439, and Cotton v. United States, 9th Cir. (1967), 371 F.2d 385. But see Simpson v. United States, 10th Cir. (1965), 346 F.2d 291 to the contrary.

> Staff: United States Attorney R. Jackson B. Smith, Jr. (S.D. Ga.)

BANK MISAPPLICATION AND FALSE ENTRIES

PERSON WORKING FOR SUBSIDIARY OF FEDERALLY REGU-LATED BANK IS WITHIN CLASS OF PERSONS INCLUDED IN 18 U.S.C. 1005 WHICH IS NOT LIMITED TO A SPECIFIC CLASS.

United States v. Robert T. Edick (C.A. 4, No. 13590; October 14, 1970; D.J. 29-79-5937)

The defendant was prosecuted for misapplication and for making false entries in the books and records of a bank insured by FDIC. 18 U.S.C. 656 and 1005.

2.v

Edick was the manager of the Proof Department of First Service Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary of First Virginia Bank Shares Corp. First Virginia is a holding company which controlls several banks. First Service handled the proofing and the bookkeeping of the banks.

While working in this department the defendant diverted bank service charges which should have been credited to the bank's income account to a personal checking account.

The defendant contended that, because his employer was First Service, a separate corporate entity, he did not come within the ambit of the class statute. The Court held that, because of the defendant's intimate relation to the bank and position of trust, he was within the class.

The Court went on to explain that false entries under the third paragraph of 18 U.S.C. 1005 were not limited to a class of persons, though there is a practical limitation to those who have access to the records.

Augustan and Augustan and Aug

Staff: United States Attorney Brian P. Gettings and Assistant U.S. Attorney David H. Hopkins (E.D. Va.)

NARCOTICS

HEROIN SELLER, INELIGIBLE OFFENDER UNDER NARCOTIC ADDICT REHABILITATION ACT, ABSENT SHOWING THAT SALE OF DRUGS WAS TO OBTAIN DRUGS FOR PERSONAL USE.

Henry C. Ramos v. United States (C.A. 9, No. 22550; September 29, 1970; D.J. 12-12c-264)

Defendant was convicted under three counts of an indictment charging (1) the sale of heroin; (2) receiving, concealing and facilitating the transportation of heroin (21 U.S.C. 174); and (3) sale of heroin without obtaining a written order form (26 U.S.C. 4705(a)), and was sentenced to five years on each count, each sentence to run concurrently.

In a per curiam decision affirming the conviction, the Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit rejected the defendant's claim that he should have been certified an addict under Title II of the Narcotic Addict Rehabilitation Act of 1966, 18 U.S.C. 4251 <u>et seq</u>. The Court first held that there was nothing in the record to show that the defendant was an addict, with the exception of defense counsel's assertion that defendant

was an addict, which the defendant denied. Even assuming, however, that he was an addict, the Court held that he was not, as a seller of heroin, an eligible offender as defined in 18 U.S.C. 4251(f)(2), since there was no showing, the Court said, that the sale was for the primary purpose of obtaining the heroin he required because of his alleged addiction. This the Court held, is not unconstitutional: the defendant is not being punished for addiction, as in <u>Robinson</u> v. <u>California</u>, 370 U.S. 660 (1962); rather, he is being punished for selling heroin, which, the Court states, is analogous to the situation in <u>Powell</u> v. <u>Texas</u>,

2,0

Staff: United States Attorney Robert L. Meyer

a¦e

*



IMMIGRATION AND NATURALIZATION SERVICE Commissioner Raymond F. Farrell

COURTS OF APPEALS

and the second se

DEPORTATION - VOLUNTARY DEPARTURE PRIVILEGE -SECOND CHANCE

NOT ARBITRARY TO CANCEL WITHOUT NOTICE UN-SUCCESSFUL LIBERAL POLICY GIVING SECOND CHANCE FOR VOLUNTARY DEPARTURE TO DEPORTABLE ALIENS.

<u>Fan Wan Keung, et al.</u> v. <u>INS</u> (C.A. 2, No. 33844; October 19, 1970; D.J. 39-51-3348)

Petitioners, ten deportable alien merchant seamen, sought review of administrative denials of reinstatement of the previously granted privilege of voluntary departure in lieu of deportation, claiming that the actions were arbitrary and unfair because they reflected an adverse policy change without notice.

In 1952 the Board of Immigration Appeals had declared that an alien who had been granted voluntary departure in deportation proceedings and who failed to depart should not be given the privilege again "in the absence of very strong and persuasive reasons". Several years later the policy was informally liberalized in the expectation that it would save the Government the expense of deportation and would hasten the departure of deportable aliens. In June 1969, prior to the applications by these petitioners for reinstatement of voluntary departure, the policy became strict again.

The Court granted the Government's motion to dismiss, finding that the tactics of the petitioners and others had made manifest the failure of the liberalized policy to accelerate departure. The Court said:

> The purposeful pattern found in all these cases, while varying slightly in immaterial respects from case to case, may be summed up in one word--"delay" ... The delays have been accomplished by resort to every applicable procedural delaying tactic known to our system of jurisprudence.

Observing that the aim of the aliens who resorted to these tactics was eventually to apply for permanent residence visas at nearby American



To reach this happy ending, the crewman must somehow manage to remain here and postpone the day of his required departure by whatever means he can until the time is ripe. Some put off the day of departure by the simple process of absconding; some by contriving frivolous and dilatory litigation; some by obtaining the introduction of private bills; some by various combinations of the foregoing.

The Court concluded that the need for a change in policy was self-evident and that depriving these petitioners of a privilege which their predecessors had almost routinely received did not make their complaint meritorious.

> Staff: United States Attorney Whitney N. Seymour, Jr.; Assistant U.S. Attorney T. Gorman Reilly and Special Assistant U.S. Attorney Stanley H. Wallenstein (S.D. N.Y.)

IMMIGRATION

STATUTE PERMITTING ALIEN PARENT OF ADULT CITIZEN TO ENTER U.S. WITHOUT REGARD TO WORLD-WIDE NUMERICAL LIMITATION OF IMMIGRANT VISAS WHILE SUBJECTING ALIEN PARENT OF INFANT CITIZEN TO SUCH LIMITATION, DOES NOT VIOLATE INFANT CITIZEN'S RIGHT TO DUE PROCESS.

Faustino v. INS (C.A. 2, No. 33811; October 5, 1970)

The above action was commenced in the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of New York seeking a declaratory judgment that section 201(b) of the Immigration and Nationality Act, 8 U.S.C. 1151(b), was repugnant to the Fourteenth Amendment of the Constitution and for an order compelling the defendant to issue visas to her parents. The plaintiff moved the district court to convene a three-judge court. The Government opposed the convening of a three-judge court and moved for summary judgment. The district court denied the plaintiff's motion for a three-judge court and granted the Government's motion to dismiss the complaint. Faustino v. INS, 302 F.Supp. 212 (S.D. N.Y. 1969). Appeal followed. The infant plaintiff was born in the United States on November 6, 1961 and is a citizen by virture of her birth. The parents are natives and citizens of Portugal and at the time of their daughter's birth were here as nonimmigrants. Following departures from the United States the plaintiff's parents again entered the United States as nonimmigrants. On July 23, 1968 the infant petitioner filed a petition to classify her father as an immediate relative pursuant to section 201(b) of the Immigration and Nationality Act, 8 U.S.C. 1151(b). The District Director denied the petition on the ground that the beneficiary was ineligible for such classification as the petitioner was only seven years old. The Board of Immigration Appeals dismissed an appeal from this ruling.

The Court of Appeals found no merit to the argument that Congress may not validly distinguish between citizen children more than or less than 21 for the purpose of relieving their parents from the quota limitation of section 201(a), 8 U.S.C. 1151(a). <u>Perdido v.</u> <u>INS</u>, 420 F.2d 1179, 1181 (C.A. 5, 1969). Accord, <u>Application of</u> <u>Amoury</u>, 307 F. Supp. 213, 216-17 (S. D. N.Y., 1969). The Court also rejected the claim that in view of the fact that among those relieved from the labor certification requirements of section 212(a)(14), 8 U.S.C. 1182(a)(14), are persons born in any independent foreign country of the Western Hemisphere so long as they have a child who is a citizen, the differentiation of section 201(b) between adult and minor children is invidious and discriminatory. The Court held that dealing differently with different problems does not offend the requirements of equal protection or due process.

ふうなないというた

an a shipe shared and a second as

Staff: Assistant U.S. Attorney Daniel Riesel; United States Attorney Whitney N. Seymour, Jr. and Assistant U.S. Attorney T. Gorman Reilly, for Appellee (S.D. N.Y.)

*

*

*

LAND AND NATURAL RESOURCES DIVISION Assistant Attorney General Shiro Kashiwa

COURT OF APPEALS

INDIANS

USE OF INDIAN TRUST FUNDS TO SATISFY DEBT TO FED. AGENCY PURSUANT TO LOAN AGREEMENT.

<u>Snow Bird</u> v. <u>McClung</u> (C.A. 8, No. 19937; October 29, 1970; D.J. 90-2-4-128)

This action against Federal officials sought disapproval of the use of the plaintiff-Indian's trust funds derived from leasing of his trust lands to repay a loan from the Farmers Home Administration, Department of Agriculture. The loan was used to purchase farm equipment. The loan agreement contained an acceleration clause and provided for conveyance of the equipment or its value in the event of default. It was further provided that plaintiff would "take such other actions" requested by FHA to carry out the agreement. Plaintiff defaulted. FHA invoked the acceleration clause and, upon plaintiff's refusal to adhere to the agreement, obtained from the Bureau of Indian Affairs a transfer of funds from plaintiff's trust account to satisfy the remainder of the debt.

While stating that annual increments to the trust account appeared sufficient to meet the annual payment schedule and, hence, accelerated satisfaction of the total remaining debt was unnecessary, the district court ruled that the agreement permitted the administrative action.

The Court of Appeals affirmed dismissal of the action on the basis of the district court's opinion.

Staff: Assistant U.S. Attorney Gary Annear (D. N. Dak.)

DISTRICT COURT

CONTRACTS

NONAPPROPRIATED FUND ACTIVITIES; SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY; TUCKER ACT; INTERPRETATION OF LEASE.

George T. McLean & Jean M. Davis, Trustees for Jamie Davis v. Commissioned Officers' Beach Club (E. D. Va., No. 7083-N; August 31, 1970; D. J. 90-1-4-182)

.

 e^{-i}

ţ

Plaintiffs, owners and lessors of property in Virginia Beach, brought an action against the Commissioned Officers' Beach Club seeking declaratory relief. The lease, executed in 1952, provided that the "lease may, at the option of the lessee, be renewed from year to year at a rental of three thousand dollars per annum". Another portion of the lease provided that the lessee, "reserved the right to terminate this lease at any time upon giving thirty days' written notice". Although the value of the property had greatly increased over the years, the Club continued to renew the lease each year at the original annual rental, maintaining it could do so indefinitely. Plaintiffs contended that: (1) the right to continuous renewals violated the rule against perpetuities; (2) the provision permitting the Club to renew annually was intended to provide for only a reasonable number of renewals after which either party could terminate; (3) the lease should be construed to give plaintiffs a right of termination which corresponded to the Club's express right to do so.

- 194

Initially, the Club moved to dismiss on the grounds that, as the Club is a Government instrumentality, and partakes of governmental immunity, the court lacked jurisdiction over the defendant Club. The court recognized that the Declaratory Judgment Act, 28 U.S.C. 2201, was not an independent grant of jurisdiction, but held that it could render declaratory relief because the action was founded upon a breach of contract within the meaning of the Tucker Act, 28 U.S.C. 1346(a)(2), although no money damages were alleged.

On the merits the Club argued that the lease provided for perpetual renewals at the Club's option. According to the preponderance of authorities, such a right is not violative of the rule against perpetuities because the parties' interests are both present and vested. The Club also took the position, based on substantial authority, that a lease terminable by one party should not be construed to provide for termination by the other where the parties clearly did not intend to create a tenancy at will.

In its decision, the court addressed principally the question of whether the clause providing for annual renewals was intended to do so in perpetuity. Noting that the law does not favor the creation of perpetuities, the court considered the following factors in reaching its conclusion that perpetual renewals were not intended: the renewal provision was written in part because the Club was unable to enter a lease for longer than a year and desired some means of extending its tenancy; the Club desired and obtained a provision permitting termination upon 30 days' notice; use of the premises was restricted to use "as a parking area and/or for other purposes in connection with the management and operation" of the Club; the renewal provision did not contain language such as "perpetual", "forever", "successive", "continuous", "everlasting" or other such phrases indicating the intent to create a perpetuity; an escalation clause for rental payments was lacking. Relying upon a line of authorities holding that a lease for an indefinite period is terminable at will and another line of authorities holding that a general covenant to renew is satisfied by a single renewal, the court then declared the lease to run from year to year terminable by either party giving three months' notice prior to the end of the term. (An appeal on behalf of the Club is being considered.)

*

*

Staff: Assistant U.S. Attorney Rogert T. Williams (E.D. Va.), and Arthur D. Smith (Land & Natural Resources Division)

*

÷

1